

Proposed Franklin Elementary PTA

Standing Rules

Approved ___/___/___

Identification:

1. The name of the unit shall be Ben Franklin PTA. The local unit number is 2.8.15.
2. This unit is a non-profit corporation recognized by the State of Washington on November 1, 1977, and amended on January 1, 1988. It is the responsibility of this unit to annually renew the Articles of Incorporation prior to November 30. The corporation number is 1279662 and the amended number is 2-279662-7.
3. This unit's Employer Identification Number is available upon request.
4. This unit was recognized by the IRS as a non-profit, tax exempt organization on April 21st 1986, under section 501(c)(4). Amended June 15th 1998 to become an organization qualifying for tax exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) Washington State PTA will be this unit's registered agent.
5. This unit shall keep at least two copies of each of its legal documents in two separate locations. One copy in the PTA Office at Ben Franklin Elementary, and one copy with the current Treasurer.
6. The membership fee of this unit will be \$15.00 per individual, or \$25.00 per couple. This fee is determined by the Board and is subject to review annually.

Officers of the Board:

7. The Nominating Committee shall be elected according to the Bylaws, Article V, and Section 5(a). It shall comply with all duties of a nominating committee as stated in the WSPTA Bylaws. The Nominating Committee can have up to 3 voting members and will report to the GM at least 15 days prior to the last GM meeting (Mary or June) at which election is held.
8. Any elected position, may be held jointly by two people. Such 'co-positions' are still both required to attend meetings and each person will get a vote.
9. The Board of Directors (BOD) will consist of the Presidents, Secretary, Treasurer and the following Vice Presidents: These positions will be elected officers on the Board.
 - a. Education
 - b. Communications
 - c. Fundraising
 - d. After School
 - e. Health & Wellness
 - f. Special Events
10. Vice Presidents will serve as liaisons between their committees and the PTA Board.
11. All elected officers and committee chairpersons must be current PTA members.
12. An office shall be declared vacant if an officer is absent three consecutive meetings, unless previously excused by the President as specified in the Bylaws, Article V, Section 7.
13. Officers shall assume duties on July 1st. Each term is for one year. No person shall serve in the same office for more than two consecutive terms.
14. Principal and Teacher Rep attend Board meetings in an advisory capacity. They do not get a

15. Board meetings of this unit will be held monthly, with at least ten (10) days notification.

16. Special GM meetings maybe called with at least 5 days' notice and special Board of Directors meetings may also be called with at least 5 days' notice. Members will be notified via email to the addresses on file.

17. There shall be at least three General Membership (GM) meetings during the year.

18. The Ben Franklin PTA shall comply with all duties outlined in the WSPTA Standards of Affiliation agreement in order to remain a PTA in good standing. The President is responsible for filing this form yearly, no later than October 31st.

19. All PTA Board officers shall execute the duties of their offices as described in the WSPTA Uniform By-laws, Section 7.

20. The students of Ben Franklin Elementary School shall be considered honorary members of this unit without voice, vote or privilege of holding office.

Fiduciary Responsibilities:

21. The Budget Committee will prepare a yearly budget and the Treasurer is the chair of the Budget Committee. The BOD must review the budget committee recommendations before submitting it to the General membership. General Membership must approve by June 30th each year, and be reapproved in September. The budget should support the Mission of the Ben Franklin PTA.

22. Reallocations of money may be done with a BOD majority vote, for up to a \$1,000 per budgeted line, \$3000 aggregate. Reallocations over \$1000 for a single line, \$3000 aggregate require approval of the general membership. If there is an expense that is not in the budget, the general membership must amend the budget.

23. The BOD will strive to maintain a carry forward a cash balance of unallocated reserves, or minimum of \$20,000 for mission critical expense as defined by the BOD.

24. All committee budget items \$500 or over require the BOD to approve a Committee Plan of Action, before money is spent. Any new requests for funds should also be submitted with a Committee Plan of Action form that will be submitted to the GM for approval. Ultimately the Board has oversight on all funds spent within the budget.

25. PTA monies received must be counted by two PTA members, one of which must be a Committee Chairperson or a Board Member.

26. Personal checks may not be accepted from any person having previously submitted two (2) checks returned for non-sufficient funds (NSF checks).

27. EZ grant committee shall consist of a PTA Board members, PTA members, Principal and Staff. The EZ Grant Committee will convene up to three times per year as needed. EZ Grant committee makes recommendations to the BOD for approval.

28. The PTA shall conduct a financial review of its books and records in January of each year, in addition to the required financial review at the close of the fiscal year in June.

29. The Treasurer is responsible for completing the appropriate tax filing each year.

30. Checks shall require two officers' signatures as determined by the BOD. In the event that two or more officers from the same household hold offices in this unit, only one shall co-sign a check or binding agreement.

General Policies

31. The Golden Acorn and any other awards shall be given at the Volunteer Appreciation Tea. A committee appointed by the Presidents shall select the recipient(s),
32. Voting delegates to the Lake Washington PTSA Council shall be a President and three authorized delegates. Article IV section 1 in the Council bylaws.
33. The vote for this unit for the Region 2 director shall be by Executive Committee action.
34. Voting delegate(s) to the Legislative Assembly will be the Legislative Chair, unless otherwise designated by the Board of Directors.
35. The Standing Rules will be adopted annually by a majority vote at the first GM meeting of the year.
36. The Standing Rules will be amended at any regular GM meeting by a 2/3 majority vote, or if two weeks' notice is given, by a majority vote
37. Motions made on the floor (during the meeting) will be put in writing for the Secretary to include in the minutes.
38. A quorum for GM meetings will be ten members.
39. A quorum for BOD meetings will be half plus one more than the number of elected officers.
40. A special GM meeting will only be called according to Washington State PTA Uniform Bylaws, Article V, and Sec. 10.
41. Teacher representatives for the PTA must be members of our unit.
42. All binding agreements and contracts shall require two signatures; one president and an elected Board Member.